
CURRITUCK COUNTY 
AIRPORT ADVISORY BOARD 

MINUTES OF MEETING OF  
July 17, 2013 

 
At 7:00 PM, a meeting of the CCAAB was held on July 17, 2013, at the Terminal Building 
Conference Room.  Members present:  Barbara Courtney, Ray Griggs, Ed Ish, Jerry Malesky, 
and John Snowden.  Also present: Commissioner Marion Gilbert and Jim Elliott, Airport 
Manager.  Guests: Richard Todd, Elton Stone, Ron Gatewood, Peter Bishop, David Messina, 
Steven Turack, Skip Scribner, Bud Reynolds, Larry Kegg, Rodney L. Meads, Bruce Weaver, 
Jack Kitchin, Leland Gibbs, and Gary Ambrose.  Absent: Ken Norris and Robin Hutchings 
(resigned). 
 
1. Call to Order – Chairman Snowden called the meeting to order.     
 
2. Welcome – Chairman Snowden welcomed members and guests.  
 
3. Additions or Deletions to the Agenda –Mr. Griggs moved to approve the agenda as 

amended.  Mr. Ish seconded the motion.  Motion carried. 
 
 Items added to agenda: 
 6. B. Discussion of Letter of Intent 
     C. Discussion of Ground Support Equipment 
     D. Fee Increases 
               E. Taxiway Timetable 
     F. Survey 
 
 7. B. Future State of the Airport  
 
4. Public Comment  -  
 
 Chairman Snowden opened the Public Comment period and asked that comments be 

held to three minutes.   
 
 Steve Turack, Chesapeake, VA, objected to the 15% hangar rate increase during this 

economic downturn and the lack of advance notice. 
 
 David Messina, Currituck, NC, noted the reorganization of the administration of the 

Transportation Improvement Program, with all forms of transportation falling under one 
formula.  He warned of the improbability of the Mid-Currituck Bridge ever being built.  He 
advised looking out for the individual general aviation pilots to keep the airport alive. 

 
 Skip Scribner, Virginia Beach, VA, felt there was no communication between the 

advisory board and the tenants.  He objected to the 15% increase all at once.  He stated 
this is a small airport in the middle of nowhere with no facilities.  The hangars have not 
been upgraded and he found the increase unacceptable.  He also had concerns about 
the month-to-month lease.   

 
 Bud Reynolds, Southern Shores, NC, had concerns.   



 
 Larry Kegg, Chesapeake, VA, expressed his appreciation for the camaraderie at the 

airport and the facilities available.  He has a tie down, but he agreed the County needs 
to be careful how it steps things up.  

 
 Ron Gatewood, Warrenton, VA, traveled all over the U.S. and overseas and pointed out 

that the U.S. has something no other country has – general aviation airports.  He had 
come to talk later about building more hangars.  He felt that the hangar fee increase was 
feasible. 

 
 Rodney Meads, Camden, NC, had seen a 31% increase in his hangar fee during the 

past 18 months, with no increase in benefits.  He appreciated what he had – a place to 
house his plane; however, he related his observation with Rutherford County Airport 
which had only 6 of 40 hangars leased because the other tenants had been run off.   

 
 Jack Kitchin, Currituck, NC, questioned what the increased funds would be used for and 

who proposed the increase.   
 
 Chairman Snowden replied that the advisory board had recommended the increase at 

their January meeting.  When he had not seen anything regarding the increase on the 
Board of Commissioners’ agenda, he inquired and was told the increase would be 
considered at budget time.  It was his hope the funds would be used for airport 
improvements but that was up to the commissioners, not the advisory board.  He 
explained it was the goal of the advisory board to make the airport more self-sufficient.  
He intended to call the commissioners and express his concerns on how the money was 
spent and urged the tenants to call them as well.  He also encouraged them to attend 
advisory board meetings.   

 
 Leland Gibbs, Barco, NC, questioned whether the increase would immediately affect 

those who were on a three-year lease.  Mr. Elliott responded there would be no increase 
until the lease expires.   

 
 Mr. Gibbs suggested a source of income would be landing fees.  He stated that it had 

been his experience that almost all airports charge a facility or handling fee to land there.  
He also noted that if an aircraft lands after hours and a county employee is requested to 
be present, it is expected the pilot would pay an additional after-hours fee.   

 
 Gary Ambrose, Camden, NC, wondered why COA got such a sweet deal and the airport 

tenants got punished.  He went on to object to the increase in hangar fees and 
expressed the thought that maybe the County was seeing how much it could charge 
before the tenants started moving out.   

 
 Chairman Snowden responded that was not the intent.  The goal is to build more 

hangars to take care of those on the waiting list.   
 
 Steve Turack questioned the statement that the advisory board didn’t have any power, 

but the increase was the result of the recommendation of the advisory board. 
 
 Mr. Griggs noted that costs to maintain facilties and services were increasing.  
  

2 
 



 David Messina referred to the letter received from Ike McRee, County Attorney, and 
asked whether the Airport Manager had recommended the increase to the advisory 
board.  Mr. Elliott replied he had not as he is staff to the board. 

 
 Skip Scribner again objected to the 15% increase.  He maintained it should have 

increased more gradually, perhaps 5% the first year.  It’s just a small airport and cannot 
be compared to Chesapeake, etc.   

 
 Leland Gibbs observed that recommendations apparently were being sent to the 

Courthouse, and no response was ever returned to the advisory board.  
 
 Chairman Snowden noted the recommendations were documented in the minutes and it 

was hoped the commissioners would read them.  Additionally, Commissioner Gilbert 
attends the advisory board meetings and reports actions to the other commissioners.  
He committed to attending the next Board of Commissioners’ meeting to relate the 
tenants’ issues with the rate increase and the need for better communication with the 
tenants.  He also asked if a newsletter relating advisory board activities would be helpful.   

 
 It was suggested that a hyperlink be emailed to tenants when the agenda and minutes 

are posted to the county website.   
 
 Commissioner Gilbert introduced herself and expressed her support for the airport which 

she considers a business and a huge asset to the County.  She recognizes the chain of 
command and strives to get information to and from the commissioners.  She invited 
tenants to contact her with their concerns.  She had not seen the letter. 

 
 Ms. Courtney felt the advisory board should have received an electronic copy of the 

letter as well.   
 
 Chairman Snowden thanked everyone for their attendance and comments.  
 
 There being no further comments, Chairman Snowden closed the Public Comment 

period.  The board took a brief recess.          
  
5. Approval of February 27, 2013, Meeting Minutes – Ms. Courtney moved to approve 

the February 27, 2013 minutes as submitted.  Mr. Malesky seconded the motion.  
Minutes were approved.   

 
6. Old Business 
 

A. Ron Gatewood – Ronald Gatewood, Midland Development Corp., Warrenton, VA, 
was present to talk about partnering with the county to construct a new hangar 
building.  He explained his business model: to lease the land, build the building, rent 
or sell it, and pay the county.  The county benefits from fuel sales, personal property 
taxes, etc. The tenants get a good hangar.  The challenge is to build to satisfy the 
tenants with a product they can afford.  The lease fees have to be determined to see 
if the project is feasible.  The budget has to be balanced, but he felt private industry 
could build it for less than the county could. 

 

3 
 



Mr. Ish asked if a new proposal could be submitted.  Mr. Gatewood responded there 
were several factors that had to be resolved before he could submit a proposal 
including site plan, lease amount, any state funding available.   
 
Mr. Bishop indicated he would furnish information to Mr. Gatewood to allow him to 
provide a draft proposal to the advisory board at their next meeting.  At Ms. 
Courtney’s request, he would confirm that in a letter and copy the advisory board.   
 
Mr. Griggs asked about the type of hangars needed.  
 
Commissioner Gilbert related that an estimate was what was being sought as no 
commitment had been given to actually construct hangars.   
 
Following further discussion, it was agreed that Mr. Gatewood would work with Mr. 
Elliott and Mr. Bishop to provide an estimate.              
    

B. Discussion of Letter of Intent – Following up on the request that Mr. Elliott write to 
those on the waiting list to determine whether they would be interested in a hangar 
lease if a new building were constructed, Mr. Elliott responded that the letters had 
not been sent.       
 

C. Discussion of Ground Support Equipment  - Items needed would be identified at 
a future meeting and incorporated into the budget.  Mr. Bishop noted the Board of 
Commissioners had given the parallel taxiway first priority on the airport list due to 
leveraging available state funding allocations before the formula changes and all 
transportation requests have to compete for funding.  There is a two year window in 
which to get the taxiway as well as some smaller projects completed with available 
funds. 
  

D. Fee Increases – Mr. Elliott related that his recollection of the discussion on raising 
hangar fees 15% was only for T hangars.  He felt the discussion on the recording of 
the meeting was incorrectly interpreted by Mary, and minutes were incorrect.  He 
noted he had confirmed that with Denise Hall who made the motion.  Therefore, the 
increase affected commercial as well as T hangars.  He had corresponded with the 
County Manager who advised it was up to the advisory board to recommend any 
changes.  Commissioner Gilbert advised and the advisory board agreed to get 
clarification on the intent of the motion and discuss it at the August meeting.  If any 
changes were recommended, they could be brought to the Board of Commissioners 
for adjustment.   
   

E. Taxiway Timetable – This was already discussed. 
 

F. Survey – Mr. Elliott related that as vacancies occur, he goes down the list to 
determine if anyone is interested in leasing at that time.  Chairman Snowden 
suggested surveying current tenants to determine if there are any issues.  Mr. Elliott 
noted that one tenant had left due to the rate increase.  Members suggested some 
questions to ask on the survey. 

          
7. New Business 
       

4 
 



A. Fuel Report – Mr. Elliott reported that MOGAS sales were about half as much as 
when first offered.  AVGAS sales were about the same as last year, but overall 
sales were down due to prices.  People just aren’t flying as much.  Jet fuel sales 
were up 62%.  Jet fuel sales from the fuel truck have increased as well.  
  

B. Future State of the Airport – Commissioner Gilbert encouraged members to 
attend the ribbon cutting for the Regional Aviation and Technical Training Center 
on August 2.  She also reported that effective September 1, Peter Bishop would 
be based at the Airport full time as the Commissioners felt the need for economic 
development and the airport to work more closely.  Mr. Bishop noted he had 
been working with Mr. Elliott to learn more about airport operations and felt, with 
the close proximity to the Maple Commerce Park and the COA Training Center, 
there would be more opportunities for businesses to benefit from these latest 
projects.  
 

 
8. Member Comment – Mr. Griggs asked for clarification on letter of intent.  This would 

ask for a non-binding commitment from those on the waiting list to gauge the need for 
more hangars. 

 
 Chairman Snowden noted the need to stay on track with quarterly meetings. 
 
 Commissioner Gilbert expressed her appreciation to the members for their willingness to 

serve.   
 
 Bruce Weaver asked for information regarding the Airport Manager position being 

changed to part time.  Mr. Elliott confirmed that.  Mr. Weaver did not agree that it should 
be part time. He expressed appreciation for the job Mr. Elliott had done.  Commissioner 
Gilbert related that all she could say was that it was a decision of the County Manager 
and the Board of Commissioners.  Chairman Snowden understood that the Airport was 
now under the supervision of Economic Development.          

     
9. Airport Manager’s Comments – Mr. Elliott distributed a list of Airport Manager duties.  

He related that he could not support his family on a part time salary.  As a result of going 
part time, the Airport would experience a loss of business, safety, and customer service.  
He had expressed the need for an additional lineman since there was usually no one to 
meet aircraft arriving after hours, but the request had not been granted.  This was a 
service he had been providing.  He advised taking concerns to the County Manager and 
Board of Commissioners.    

 
10. Announcements – Chairman Snowden encouraged members to attend the ribbon 

cutting for the Regional Aviation and Technical Training Center, August 2, 9:00 am. 
 
 Elton Stone reported that things were going well at the Center.  Classes had already 

started.  FAA had visited and everything was good.  He described various classes to be 
offered.   

 
 Chairman Snowden noted the next meeting would be August 21, 2013.   
 
11. Adjourn 
  

5 
 



There being no further business, Ms. Courtney moved to adjourn.  Mr. Griggs seconded 
the motion.  The meeting was adjourned. 

 
 
 
 
 

6 
 


